
 

City of La Vernia 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

102 E. Chihuahua St., La Vernia, Texas 78121 

March 07, 2023  

6:30 PM 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge 

3. Citizens to Be Heard 
(At this time, citizens who have filled out a registration form prior to the start of the meeting 
may speak on any topic they wish to bring to the attention on the governing body so long 
as that topic is not on the agenda for this meeting. Citizens may speak on specific agenda 
items when that item is called for discussion. During the Citizens to Be Heard section no 
council action may take place and no council discussion or response is required to the 
speaker. A time limit of three minutes per speaker is permitted; the council may extend this 
time at their discretion.) 

4. Consent Agenda 
(All consent agenda items are considered routine by Planning & Zoning and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Councilmember requests an item be removed and considered separately.) 

A. Minutes from 02-07-23 regular planning and Zoning Meeting  

5. Public Hearing 

A. Public hearing regarding the request for A Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow for a 
drive-thru in the C-1 zoning district regarding the space specifically known as 427 
Bluebonnet Rd, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 legally known as CITY OF LA VERNIA, 
LOT 441K, ACRES 7.59 BLUEBONNET RD LA VERNIA, TX 78121, and more 
specifically described as RBFCU ETM, which will occupy only a portion of this parcel 
as described in the attachment 

 

A.1 Open Public Hearing 

A.2 Requestor presentation 

A.3 Staff presentation 

A.4 Receive Public Comments 

A.5 Close Public Hearing 

A.6 Discuss and consider action regarding recommendation to City 
Council regarding Ordinance Number 030923-01 the SUP for RBFCU 
ETM 

B. Public hearing regarding the request for CHANGE OF ZONING DISTRICT 
CLASSIFICATION FROM THE PRESENT CLASSIFICATION OF C2 TO C1 
(RETAIL) regarding the space specifically known as CITY OF LA VERNIA, 15010 US 
HWY 87 W, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 LEGALY KNOW AS CITY OF LA VERNIA, 

1



 
 

LOT 101B, ACRES 46.6996, LA VERNIA, TEXAS, currently owned by Bonnie 
Chessher 

 

B.1 Open Public Hearing 

B.2 Requestor presentation 

B.3 Staff presentation 

B.4 Receive Public Comments 

B.5 Close Public Hearing 

B.6 Discuss and consider action regarding a recommendation to City 
Council regarding Ordinance Number 030923-02 the Rezone of 5010 
US HWY 87 W, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 

6. Discussion & Action 

A. Discuss and consider action on making a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding Ordinance No. 030923-03 for pre-development meetings prior to the 
development of subdivisions or large commercial projects 

7. Items Specific to Future Line Items on the Agenda 

8. Adjourn 

DECORUM REQUIRED 

Any disruptive behavior, including shouting or derogatory statements or comments, may be ruled 
out of order by the Presiding Officer. Continuation of this type of behavior could result in a request 
by the Presiding Officer that the individual leaves the meeting, and if refused, an order of removal. 

The City Council for the City of La Vernia reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at 
any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized 
by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Governmental Code §551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and 
Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 
§551.087 (Economic Development), and any other provisions under Texas law that permits a 
governmental body to discuss a matter in closed executive session. 

The City of La Vernia Council meetings is available to all persons regardless of disability. The 
facility is wheelchair-accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations, 
should you require special assistance, must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Braille is not 
available. Please contact the City Secretary at (830) 779-4541 or email Lboyd@lavernia-tx.gov. 

 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the governing 
body of the above-named La Vernia Planning and Zoning Commission is a true and correct copy 
of said Notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said Notice on the bulletin boards of 
the City Hall of said La Vernia, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general 
public at all times, and said Notice was posted on March 3, 2023, at 5:00 PM and remained so 
posted continuously for at least 72 Hours preceding the scheduled time of the said meeting. 

2



 
 

 

 

_________________________________ 
Lindsey Wheeler, City Secretary 

3



 

City of La Vernia 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

102 E. Chihuahua St., La Vernia, Texas 78121 

February 07, 2023  

6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

1. Call to Order 

Meeting Called to order at 6:30 pm 

Commissioner Jacobs was absent  

2. Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge 

Chairwoman Hennette led the invocation and pledge  

3. Citizens to Be Heard 
(At this time, citizens who have filled out a registration form prior to the start of the meeting 
may speak on any topic they wish to bring to the attention of the governing body so long as 
that topic is not on the agenda for this meeting. Citizens may speak on specific agenda 
items when that item is called for discussion. During the Citizens to Be Heard section no 
council action may take place and no council discussion or response is required of the 
speaker. A time limit of three minutes per speaker is permitted; the council may extend this 
time at their discretion.) 

There were no Citizens to be heard  

4. Consent Agenda 
(All consent agenda items are considered routine by Planning & Zoning and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Councilmember requests an item be removed and considered separately.) 

A. Approve minutes from the January 17, 2023 - Regular Meeting. 

Commissioner Tanneberger made a motion to accept the consent agenda as 
presented, seconded by Commissioner Witherell, all in favor MOTION PASSED 

5. Public Hearing 

A.  A.   A. Public hearing regarding the request to replat 105 Juniors Pl, Lot 2, Block 2 of 
Westover Subdivision, Unit 2.   

     A.1 Open Public Hearing 
     A.2 Requestor presentation 
     A.3 Staff presentation 
     A.4 Receive Public Comments 
     A.5 Close Public Hearing 
     A.6 Discuss and consider approval of a replat of 105 Juniors Pl 

The public hearing opened at 6:31 pm  

The owners of 105 Juniors Place Presented  

No staff Presenttaion 

4

Section 4, Item A.



 
 

No public Comments  

The public Hearing closed at 6:33 pm  

Commissioner Witherell made a motion to approve the re-plat at 105 Juniors Place, 
seconded by Commissioner Raushuber, all in favor, MOTION PASSED   

6. Discussion  

A. Discuss Ch. 38 Sec. 38-403. - Landscaping standards. 

Chairwoman Hennette suggests that the staff take another look at the landscape 
code compliance of the office building located at Walnut Springs  

7. Items Specific to Future Line Items on the Agenda 

Potential future discussion regarding requirement for sidewalks in new developments  

8. Adjourn 

Commissioner Tanneberger made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6;47 pm, seconded 
by Commissioner Witherell, all in favor, meeting adjourned at 6:47 pm  

DECORUM REQUIRED 

Any disruptive behavior, including shouting or derogatory statements or comments may be ruled 
out of order to the Presiding Officer. Continuation of this type of behavior could result in a request 
by the Presiding Officer that the individual leave the meeting, and if refused, an order of removal. 

The City Council for the City of La Vernia reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at 
any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized 
by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Governmental Code §551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and 
Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices), and 
§551.087 (Economic Development), and any other previsions under Texas law that permits a 
governmental body to discuss a matter in closed executive session. 

The City of La Vernia Council meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. The 
facility is wheelchair accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommodations, 
should you require special assistance, must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Braille is not 
available. Please contact the City Secretary at (830) 779-4541 or email Lboyd@lavernia-tx.gov. 

 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the governing 
body if the above named La Vernia Planning and Zoning Commission is a true and correct copy 
of said Notice and that I posted true and correct copy of said Notice on the bulletin boards of the 
City Hall of said La Vernia, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public 
at all times, and said Notice was posted on Month DD, 20YY at H:MM PM and remained so 
posted continuously for at least 72 Hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

 

5

Section 4, Item A.



 
 

_________________________________ 
Lindsey Wheeler, City Secretary 

6

Section 4, Item A.



7

Section 5, Item A.



8

Section 5, Item A.



Legal Public Notice 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

PROPOSED SPECIFIC USE PERMIT 

 

LA VERNIA PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

AND 

LA VERNIA CITY COUNCIL 

 

Notice is hereby given that the City of La Vernia Planning and Zoning Commission will 

conduct a Public Hearing at 6:30 P.M. on the 7th day of February 2023: and the La Vernia 

City Council will conduct a Public Hearing at 6:30 P.M. on the 9th day of February  2023; 

with both Hearings to be held at the La Vernia City Hall, 102 East Chihuahua Street, La 

Vernia Texas 78121 at which time all interested parties shall have the opportunity to be 

heard with respect to the following proposed change for the property described as 

follows: 

 

 

A Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow for a drive-thru in the C-1 zoning district located 

at 427 Bluebonnet Rd, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 legally known as CITY OF LA 

VERNIA, LOT 441K, ACRES 7.59 BLUEBONNET RD LA VERNIA, TX 78121, and 

more specifically known as RBFCU ETM  
 
 

 

9

Section 5, Item A.



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

The City of La Vernia Planning & Zoning Commission and the La Vernia City Council will hold a public 

hearing at the request of RBFCU regarding the space specifically known as:  

427 Bluebonnet Rd, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 legally known as CITY OF LA VERNIA, LOT 441K, 

ACRES 7.59 BLUEBONNET RD LA VERNIA, TX 78121, and more specifically described as RBFCU ETM, 

which will occupy only a portion of this parcel as described in the attachment 

Request: A Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow for a drive-thru in the C-1 zoning district  

Because your property is located within 200 feet of the request, State Law requires that we notify you of the 

public hearing. However, the zoning of your property will not be affected. The public hearing process allows 

an opportunity to provide your written opinion of the request. This will aid the Planning Commission in making 

a recommendation to City Council. 

A public hearing for this request is scheduled before the Planning & Zoning Commission on Tuesday, March 

7th, 2023 at 6:30 PM and City Council on Thursday, March 9th, 2023 at 6:30 PM. Both meetings will be held at 

102 E. Chihuahua St., Council Chambers, and are open to the public. To submit written comments please 

complete the information below, including your signature, and return to:  

Mail: City of La Vernia 

 Lindsey Wheeler 

 PO Box 225 

 La Vernia, Texas 78121   Email: Lboyd@lavernia-tx.gov  

 

If you have questions, please call Lindsey Wheeler at (830) 779-4541 ext. 3. 

 

___________________________ 

Lindsey Wheeler, City Secretary  

 

    

YOUR OPINION MATTERS – DETACH AND RETURN 

         circle one 

I am (in favor) (opposed) to the proposed Special Use Permit (SUP) to allow for a drive-thru in the C-1 

zoning district for the property described as 427 Bluebonnet Rd, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 legally known 

as CITY OF LA VERNIA, LOT 441K, ACRES 7.59 BLUEBONNET RD LA VERNIA, TX 78121, and more 

specifically described as RBFCU, which will occupy only a portion of this parcel as described in the 

attachment 

 

Name:_______________________________________ 

Address:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature:______________________________________            Date: _________________________ 

Comments: ____________________________________________________________________ 

By State Law – Unsigned submission cannot be counted as official comment. 

10

Section 5, Item A.

mailto:Lboyd@lavernia-tx.gov


 
 
 

11

Section 5, Item A.



12

Section 5, Item A.



13

Section 5, Item A.



14

Section 5, Item A.



15

Section 5, Item A.



16

Section 5, Item A.



17

Section 5, Item A.



18

Section 5, Item A.



19

Section 5, Item A.



20

Section 5, Item A.



21

Section 5, Item A.



22

Section 5, Item A.



23

Section 5, Item A.



24

Section 5, Item A.



25

Section 5, Item A.



26

Section 5, Item A.



27

Section 5, Item A.



28

Section 5, Item A.



29

Section 5, Item A.



30

Section 5, Item A.



31

Section 5, Item B.



LEGAL PUBLIC NOTICE
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS

PROPOSED CHANGE OF ZONING DISTRICT 
CLASSIFICATION

LA VERNIA PLANNING AND ZONING  
COMMISSION

AND LA VERNIA CITY COUNCIL

The La Vernia Planning and Zoning Commission 
will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, March 7th at 
6:30 PM & City Council will hold a public hearing on 
Thursday, March 9th at 6:30 PM in the City Coun-
cil Chambers located at 102 E. Chihuahua Street, 
La Vernia to receive public comment and testimony 
on the application to rezone the following four (1) 
property by property owner: Bonnie Chessher and 
potential partners NP Homes LLC 
 1.15010 US Hwy 87 W, La Vernia Texas 78121, 
City of La Vernia, Lot 101B, Acres 46.6996

 All property subject to the rezoning is located in 
Wilson County, Texas.

From present classifications of C-2 General 
Commercial to C-1 Commercial Retail

32

Section 5, Item B.



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

The City of La Vernia Planning & Zoning Commission and the La Vernia City Council will hold a public 

hearing at the request of NP Homes regarding the space specifically known as:  

15010 US HWY 87 W, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 legally known as CITY OF LA VERNIA, LOT 101B, 

ACRES 46.6996, Owned by Bonnie Chessher 

Request: A Re-zone from the existing zoning of c2- General Commercial to C-1 Retail district  

Because your property is located within 200 feet of the request, State Law requires that we notify you of the 

public hearing. However, the zoning of your property will not be affected. The public hearing process allows 

an opportunity to provide your written opinion of the request. This will aid the Planning Commission in making 

a recommendation to City Council. 

A public hearing for this request is scheduled before the Planning & Zoning Commission on Tuesday, March 

7th, 2023 at 6:30 PM and City Council on Thursday, March 9th, 2023 at 6:30 PM. Both meetings will be held at 

102 E. Chihuahua St., Council Chambers, and are open to the public. To submit written comments please 

complete the information below, including your signature, and return to:  

Mail: City of La Vernia 

 Lindsey Wheeler 

 PO Box 225 

 La Vernia, Texas 78121   Email: Lboyd@lavernia-tx.gov  

 

If you have questions, please call Lindsey Wheeler at (830) 779-4541 ext. 3. 

 

___________________________ 

Lindsey Wheeler, City Secretary  

 

    

YOUR OPINION MATTERS – DETACH AND RETURN 

         circle one 

I am (in favor) (opposed) to the proposed Re-zone from the existing zoning of c2- General Commercial to C-

1 Retail district for the property described as 15010 US HWY 87 W, LA VERNIA, TEXAS 78121 legally 

known as CITY OF LA VERNIA, LOT 101B, ACRES 46.6996, Owned by Bonnie Chessher 

 

 

Name:_______________________________________ 

Address:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Signature:______________________________________            Date: _________________________ 

Comments: ____________________________________________________________________ 

By State Law – Unsigned submission cannot be counted as official comment. 

 
 

33

Section 5, Item B.

mailto:Lboyd@lavernia-tx.gov


 

34

Section 5, Item B.



35

Section 5, Item B.



36

Section 5, Item B.



37

Section 5, Item B.



38

Section 5, Item B.



39

Section 5, Item B.



40

Section 5, Item B.



41

Section 5, Item B.



42

Section 5, Item B.



ORDINANCE NO. 030923-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LA VERNIA, TEXAS AMENDING  
LA VERNIA CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 30 SUBDIVISIONS, ARTICLE 
III. – GENERAL PLATTING PROCEDURES; SECTION 30-301.- OVERALL 
DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT.; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 216 of the Vernon’s Local Government Code empowers a city to enact 
zoning regulations and provide for their administration, enforcement and amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously deemed it necessary and desirable to adopt sign regulations 
to provide for the orderly development of property within the City in order to promote the public 
health, safety, morals and general welfare of the residents of the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of La Vernia Code or Ordinances Chapter 30 which constitutes the City’s 
Subdivision Ordinance requires a property to be developed in accordance with proper 
designations as defined by this ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council and  Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of La Vernia has 
met and discussed amending the above-mentioned sections of the Subdivision code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of La Vernia has recommended 
approval of the amendments to the Subdivision Regulations discussed in this ordinance and the 
proposed amendments are uniform and conforms to the plan and design of the City of La Vernia’s 
Subdivision Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of La Vernia believes the amendments will comply with 
the standards and purpose of the Subdivision Ordinance and are in the best interests of the public 
safety and the general welfare of the residents of the City of La Vernia; 
 
NOW THEREFORE: BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF  
LA VERNIA, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1.   
Sign Regulations Amended. 

 
CHAPTER 26-101.1.- DEFINITIONS; of the City of La Vernia’s Code of Ordinances is hereby 
amended as reflected in the document attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.  
 
CHAPTER 26-110.- PERMITTING REGULATIONS of the City of La Vernia’s Code of Ordinances 
is hereby amended as reflected in the document attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
CHAPTER 26-111.- PROHIBITED SIGN TYPES of the City of La Vernia’s Code of Ordinances is 
hereby amended as reflected in the document attached hereto as Exhibit “C”. 
 
 

Section 2.   
Severability 

 

43

Section 6, Item A.



If any section, subsection, paragraph, or sentence, clause, phrase, or word in this Ordinance, or 
application thereof, to any person or circumstance is held invalid such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of the same and the City Council hereby declares it would have 
passed such remaining portions despite such invalidity. 
 

Section 3 
Cumulative 

 
This ordinance is cumulative of all other laws addressing land use regulations and any prohibitions 
and sanctions that may be imposed under other laws relating to the subjects covered hereunder. 
 

 
Section 4. 

  Effective Date 
 
This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and publication as may 
be required by governing law. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 17TH DAY OF NOVEMBER 2022. 
 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Martin Poore, Mayor 
City of La Vernia 
 

        
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Lindsey Wheeler, City Secretary 
City of La Vernia 
 
  

44

Section 6, Item A.



Exhibit “A” 

Sec. 30-301. - Overall development concept. 

(a) Prior to the submission of a master plan or plat, all commercial developments, and all 

residential developments consisting of more than two units, the applicant or representative is 

required to present their proposal to the city. This presentation will be given at a mandatory 

scheduled pre-development meeting, at which the City Administrator, building, and code 

enforcement departments, local first responding fire, EMS, and police personnel, health 

departments, and any other departments or representatives deemed necessary by the City 

Administrator will be present. At said meeting, comments and advice on the procedures, 

specifications, and standards required in the local ordinances will be discussed. 

(b) All persons desiring to subdivide land within the area of jurisdiction of this chapter shall 

first prepare and submit to the commission, not less than ten working days prior to 

any meeting at which the plat is to be considered, the following information: 

(1) Five black line or blue line copies of an overall development concept encompassing all land 

owned by the subdivider. The overall concept shall be in compliance with all applicable 

provisions of this chapter. 

(2) Two black line or blue line prints of the preliminary plans for the furnishing of water, the 

installation of sanitary sewer facilities, and provisions for storm sewers and general drainage 

facilities. Topographic contours with intervals of not more than ten feet shall be shown. 

(3) A letter of transmittal giving the name and address of the owner or agent and the person 

or firm who prepared the plat concept. 

(4) A certificate or letter from a title guaranty company or from an attorney duly licensed to 

practice law in the state, certifying the following concerning title to the land: 

a. A statement of records examined and date of examination; 

b. Description of the property in question by metes and bounds; 

c. Name of the fee owner as of the date of examination and the date, file number, and 

volume and page of the recording of the deed involved; 

d. The name of any lien holder together with the date of filing and volume and page of such 

lien; and 

e. A general description of any easements or fee strips granted, along with the file number, 

date of filing, and volume and page of recording. 

(5) A nonrefundable check payable to the city in the amount as specified within the fee 

schedule. 

45

Section 6, Item A.



(6) In cases where public streets, alleys, or easements are proposed to be platted across 

private easement or fee strips, a copy of the instrument establishing such private easement 

or fee strip shall be submitted. Where a private easement has no defined location, agreement 

on a defined easement must be reached before submission of final plat. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46

Section 6, Item A.


	Top
	Section 4, Item A.	Minutes from 02-07-23 PZ Meeting
	02-07-23 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Document (3)

	Section 5, Item A.	RBFCU ETM Public Hearing
	Graphic for mailer
	public notice- newspaper
	mailer - NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING RBFCU
	20230223_Land ownership must be verified with anotarized stateme

	Section 5, Item B.	NP Homes Re-zone
	Main Graphioc
	City of LV 2x4 2- LEGAL NOTICE
	mailer - NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING NP HOMES
	20230210_15010 us Hwy 87 W, La Vernia, TX 78121

	Section 6, Item A.	Discuss and consider action on making a recommendation to City Council regarding Ordinance for pre-development meetings prior to the development of subdivisions or large commercial projects
	030923-03- Ch 30- subdivisions - pre development meeting

	Bottom

